

Survey of the Retirement Landscape

Participant Perspectives

Second Edition | 2025



INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT

Table of contents

About the survey	02
Key findings	02
Retirement preparedness	03
Confidence in meeting retirement goals	05
Investment experience and making retirement plan investment decisions	06
Confidence in making specific financial decisions	06
Confidence in making retirement-plan- related decisions	07
Plans for retirement age and plan assets at retirement	80
Interest in employer- sponsored retirement plan features	09
Financial wellness program features	11
Role of employers/ ESRP and impact on employee retention	12
Conclusion	14
Survey methodology	15

About the survey

Welcome to the second edition of Voya Investment Management's survey of retirement plan participants. The survey seeks to better understand participant sentiments about financial and retirement planning priorities, the challenges and concerns participants face, and the services they may need —informing how defined contribution (DC) plan sponsors and DC specialists can build more robust and competitive employee benefits programs.

Economic backdrop

We conducted our survey on January 23 and 24, 2025, a few days after the presidential inauguration.

As participants were completing the survey, the U.S. appeared to be emerging from the pandemic's long-tailed aftershocks stronger than before. The cloud of inflation hanging over markets had slowly started to dissipate, unemployment was below historical norms, and markets had embraced the pro-growth prospects of deregulation and tax cuts.

Key findings

- Participant retirement preparedness sentiment increased significantly in 2025, with 69% indicating they feel very or somewhat prepared for retirement. Still, many participants would benefit from additional support from plan sponsors and DC specialists, as more than half of participants expressed concerns about inflation, market volatility, and the economy.
- Many participants do not view themselves as experienced investors, and the past few years have had mixed impact on their confidence. This suggests that many would welcome reassurance and support on key topics, such as the potential benefits of their plans and support for important decisions.
- Many participants reported relatively low levels of confidence in making key retirement-related decisions, particularly for decisions relating to retirement income and transition services, suggesting demand for additional support.
- Participants indicated strong interest in education related to retirement income and investment decision-making. Other areas where participants would welcome guidance included managed accounts, auto features, retirement drawdown strategies, and financial wellness topics. Promoting these services can help drive better outcomes for participants (and sponsors). Many of these products/services help address areas in which participants cited low levels of confidence.
- Many participants haven't decided on their retirement date (especially those over age 50), possibly due to decreased confidence in meeting their retirement goals given high inflation and concerns about insufficient savings. About one-third of participants said they aren't sure about their plans for their retirement assets after they retire.
- Participants generally viewed their employers as a trusted source and value their employer-sponsored retirement plan (ESRP). There is an opportunity for employers/sponsors to retain employees by offering services/support in some key areas, including improving overall financial wellness, support for key decisions, and retirement income planning.

Although the

participants felt at

least somewhat

were concerned

prepared, 31%

about their retirement

readiness.

majority of

- 15% of participants self-identified as a caregiver, and 5% reported having a disability or special needs. Two-thirds said they are very or somewhat interested in comprehensive planning resources and support aimed at special needs caregivers, (although sponsors and DC specialists both underestimated this interest).
- 86% of participants said they are somewhat/very interested in getting help maximizing their benefit dollars across retirement savings, health savings accounts, health care insurance, and voluntary benefits.

Retirement preparedness

Participant retirement readiness has improved since our last survey. 69% of those surveyed said they feel very or somewhat prepared for retirement—a 6% increase from 2023.

Very prepared Somewhat prepared Not well prepared Not at all prepared 63% 16% 17% 69% very / very / somewhat somewhat prepared prepared 47% 52% 28% 22% 2023 2025

Exhibit 1: Overall, how prepared are you for retirement?

Once again, there was a meaningful gender gap in feelings of retirement readiness, with women significantly less likely to feel prepared than men (58% versus 79%, respectively).

Working with a financial advisor boosted confidence among participants: Those working with an advisor were 25% more likely to indicate they were very or somewhat prepared for retirement than those who did not have an advisor.

The impact of the economy, inflation, and market volatility on participants

More than half of participants surveyed reported that inflation and the state of the economy will have a severe or major impact on their ability to save for retirement (Exhibit 4). Women were significantly more likely than men to believe that the economy will have a severe or major impact on their ability to save for retirement (62% versus 53%, respectively).

For the first time, we asked participants about the impact of market volatility on their ability to save for retirement. 29% said it would have a severe or major impact, and this sentiment was significantly higher among men than women (35% versus 23%).

The number of participants who said they are now planning to retire later than originally hoped given market volatility, the current labor market, and inflation also increased (37% in 2025 versus 30% in 2023).

One notable change this year was that the number of participants who reported that unexpected medical expenses will majorly or severely impact their ability to save for retirement rose significantly (35% in 2025 versus 25% in 2023).





Most participants said that the economy, market volatility, and inflation will have a major impact on their ability to save for retirement.

Confidence in meeting retirement goals

One encouraging trend—despite the challenging market backdrop—is that participants' confidence in meeting retirement goals has significantly increased since 2023, with those indicating greater confidence outnumbering those who feel less confident. Those with increased confidence attributed it to increased ability to save due to higher earnings, increased knowledge or education, and favorable market conditions:

- "I was able to do more research on the subject and made a plan on how much I should actually contribute."
- "I'm making more money and can save more."
- "I met with a family friend who is a financial advisor, and he made me feel better about my current financial standing and my ability to prepare for the future."

Exhibit 3: Over the past two years, how has your confidence in meeting your retirement goals changed?



Decreased confidence in meeting retirement goals often related to inflation, medical costs, and an inability to save enough:

- "Due to the economy, I've been paying more and more to bills; groceries and things are so expensive that it's hard to contribute."
- "I feel like I need to save more due to inflation and not knowing how prices and life overall will be when it's time for me to retire."
- "We have had a ton of medical problems affect our savings."

43% of participants felt their confidence in meeting retirement goals has increased over the past two years.

Investment experience and making retirement plan investment decisions

29% of participants indicated they were very experienced or experienced investors. Men and those working with a financial advisor were significantly more likely to consider themselves experienced versus women and participants not working with an advisor (38% versus 17% and 46% versus 24%, respectively). About one-third reported that they consider themselves either "not an investor" (14%) or a "beginner" investor (21%).

As far as how participants invest, the most common response was that they use a managed account (25%), followed by creating their own portfolio (24%) using funds offered in the plan's investment menu. This was followed by those who work with a financial advisor who chooses the investments for them (22%) and those primarily using a target date fund (13%).

One in six participants didn't know or were not sure how they invest within their retirement plan—with a significantly higher number of women indicating uncertainty (23%, versus 9% of men).

Experience with investing How to invest within retirement plan Significantly Very experienced 7% 28% higher among I invest using a managed account 25% feel verv men (29%) vs. experienced 21% Experienced women (18%) or experienced I create my own portfolio using individual stock and bond funds 24% offered in the plan's investment menu Somewhat 37% I work with a financial advisor and experienced they choose my investments for me I primarily invest in a target date fund 13% A beginner 21% Significantly higher among I do not consider Don't know/not sure 16% women (24%) myself an investor vs. men (9%)

Exhibit 4: How experienced an investor are you, and how do you invest within your retirement plan?

Confidence in making specific financial decisions

In making financial decisions, participants said they are very confident about how to pay off debt (including student loans) and budget for monthly living expenses.

But confidence began to decline when considering how to estimate health care costs in retirement, caregiving financial responsibilities, and how much they will need to maintain their current lifestyle in retirement. Knowledge of how to best plan for the future was also cited as a challenge for many participants (when to take Social Security, how to save for education costs for children/grandchildren, maximizing HSAs, and knowing how much they can spend while in retirement).

Most participants could use additional support in making investing decisions. Participants were more confident about paying off debt and making general budgeting decisions, but less sure when it came to retirementrelated decisions.

	Very confident	 Not confident at all
Paying down student loan debt	36%	14%
Paying off debt	33%	20%
Budgeting monthly living expenses/cash management	33%	14%
Estimating monthly expenses	33%	16%
Prioritizing where to put my next dollar saved	26%	19%
Understanding when to take Social Security benefits to maximize my payouts	24%	26%
How much I should save for unexpected emergencies	22%	26%
Maximizing HSAs for retirement	21%	29%
Saving for my children's/grandchildren's education	20%	23%
Knowing how much income I will need to maintain my current lifestyle in retirement	20%	30%
Knowing how much I can spend each year in retirement	19%	35%
Caregiving financial responsibilities (e.g., beneficiary designations, setting up trusts, etc.)	18%	32%
Estimating health care expenses in retirement	14%	42%
	Paying down student loan debt Paying off debt Budgeting monthly living expenses/cash management Estimating monthly expenses Prioritizing where to put my next dollar saved Understanding when to take Social Security benefits to maximize my payouts How much I should save for unexpected emergencies Maximizing HSAs for retirement Saving for my children's/grandchildren's education Knowing how much income I will need to maintain my current lifestyle in retirement Knowing how much I can spend each year in retirement Caregiving financial responsibilities (e.g., beneficiary designations, setting up trusts, etc)	Paying down student loan debt36%Paying off debt33%Budgeting monthly living expenses/cash management33%Estimating monthly expenses33%Prioritizing where to put my next dollar saved26%Understanding when to take Social Security benefits to maximize my payouts24%How much I should save for unexpected emergencies22%Maximizing HSAs for retirement21%Saving for my children's/grandchildren's education Knowing how much I can spend each year in retirement20%Knowing financial responsibilities (e.g., beneficiary designations, setting up trusts, etc.)18%

Exhibit 5: How confident are you in making specific financial decisions?

Confidence in making retirement-plan-related decisions

Confidence related to specific retirement plan decisions was relatively low, with just 26% of participants reporting they are very confident making fund/investment selections, saving for retirement, and improving their overall financial wellness. An almost equal number of participants also said they are not at all confident in making these decisions, signaling room for support/education.

Confidence was even worse related to making general investment decisions, balancing benefits and savings decisions, and transitioning to retirement (converting savings to income, drawdown strategies, minimizing taxes, Medicare costs, etc.).

Exhibit 6: How confident are you in making retirement income planning decisions?

		Very confident	Not confident at all
	Understanding Medicare costs in retirement	17%	41%
ent	How to minimize taxes when converting my savings to retirement income	17%	37%
]	Converting my savings into income in retirement so I do not outlive my savings	20%	35%
	Transitioning to retirement	19%	35%
	Understanding how much money I will need in order to retire comfortably	20%	33%
	Personalized strategies for drawing down my retirement savings while in retirement	18%	33%
	General investment decisions	21%	25%
	Balancing workplace benefits and retirement savings decisions	21%	25%
	Making fund/investment selections for my retirement plan account	26%	24%
	Saving for retirement	24%	23%
	Improving my overall financial wellness	24%	22%

Participants also lacked confidence in making retirement income planning decisions.

Plans for retirement age and plan assets at retirement

44% of participants said they have a planned age for retirement, with 65 being the age most participants plan to retire. Men and those working with a financial advisor were significantly more likely to have a planned retirement age than women and those without a financial advisor (51% versus 38% and 60% versus 41%, respectively).



The impacts of inflation, the economy, and market volatility have caused many participants to push out their retirement date, with 37% now planning a later retirement. Those aged 50 and older reported feeling this impact more strongly and were slightly more likely (40%) to say they are retiring later than planned (40% versus 35% of participants ages 18 to 49).

Older participants said they are planning to retire later than originally expected.

Exhibit 8: Has your planned retirement age changed given market volatility, the current labor market, and inflation?



33% of participants said they are not sure or don't know what they will do with their retirement assets when they retire. This sentiment was significantly higher among women (44%, versus 23% of men).

About one-third of participants said they will listen to advisor recommendations on what to do with their retirement assets once they retire. Another 20% said they intend to leave their assets in the plan (a slightly more common response among those aged 50+).

Exhibit 9: What do you plan on doing with your retirement plan assets when you retire?



Interest in employer-sponsored retirement plan features

When it comes to employer-sponsored retirement plan (ESRP) features, most participants expressed interest in getting help related to retirement income and advice/guidance for investment decisions. There was strong interest in an investment option that helps provide income during retirement, in getting help understanding how to generate income in retirement, in investment guidance for their retirement plan, and in support in transitioning to retirement.

Most participants were also interested in learning more about automatic plan features and managed accounts and having access to a professional for advice.

Many participants said they don't have a plan for their DC assets when they retire. Participants

said they want products and services that can help with retirement income planning and investment decision-making.

Very interested	Somewhat	interested	Top 2 box
Help understanding how to generate income in retirement so that I can maintain my current lifestyle	54%	35%	89%
An investment option that helps provide income during retirement	53%	35%	88%
Investment guidance for my retirement plan account	53%	35%	88%
Support in transitioning to retirement (understanding Social Security, health care costs, Medicare)	49%	38%	86%
Learning more about automatic retirement plan features that might help me be better prepared for retirement (save and invest)	45%	40%	85%
Strategies for drawing down my savings while in retirement	43%	42%	85%
Retirement plan options that focus on providing a predictable, non- guaranteed stream of income in retirement (including withdrawal strategies)	42%	43%	85%
Personalized advice/guidance service that constructs my investment portfolio based on my risk tolerance level (managed account)	44%	40%	84%
Access to a professional who I can call with questions to make investment and savings decisions for me	44%	40%	84%
Robo-advice for in-plan investments	19% 37%		56%

Exhibit 10: How interested would you be in each of the following if offered as part of your retirement plan?

Nine in ten participants said they are very/somewhat interested in an online/digital financial tool that allows them to see all their financial and employer benefits in one place. 85% said they would like help maximizing their benefit dollars. Additionally, about two-thirds were interested in support around caregiving for family members and planning resources for special needs caregivers.

Participants

were interested in digital tools to access finances and benefits in a single place and help maximizing their benefit dollars.

Very interes	ted Some	what interested	Top 2 box
An online/digital personal financial tool that allows me to see all of my financial and employer benefits information in a single place	48%	40%	88%
Help maximizing my benefit dollars across retirement savings, HSA, health insurance, and voluntary benefits	47%	38%	86%
A workplace emergency savings plan	42%	42%	84%
A mobile app that allows me to enroll and manage my workplace benefits and financial wellness offerings	43%	39%	82%
Help getting back on track towards my retirement savings goals given the long-term effects of Covid, market volatility, and inflation	30%	39%	69%
Information/support around caregiving for aging parent, grandparent or family member	31%	36%	66%
Comprehensive planning resources and support for special needs caregiving	29%	37%	65%
Student loan debt management program	21% 21%		42%

Exhibit 11: How interested would you be in each of the following products/services if offered as part of your retirement plan?

Financial wellness program features

Participants expressed a high level of interest across several key financial wellness program features, notably education on retirement income planning, online tools and calculators, and education on investing and the cost of health care in retirement. Seven in ten participants said they would like to receive education on budgeting, HSAs, and debt management. More than half expressed interest in education around 529 plans and planning for college expenses.

Exhibit 12: How interested would you be in each of the following features of a financial wellness program if offered by your employer?



Participants were most interested in receiving education on income planning and health care budgeting in retirement as part of a financial wellness program.

Role of employers/ESRP and impact on employee retention

This year, more participants said they'd be more likely to stay with their employers if offered competitive retirement planning services and products (92%, versus 87% in 2023).

82% of participants said they trust the retirement planning services offered to them by their employer, and 80% were confident that their employer's retirement plan could help them achieve their retirement goals.

Exhibit 13: To what extent do you agree with the following statements?

	Strongly agree	e 📕 Agree	Top 2 box
I am likely to stay with my employer if they offer competitive retirement planning services/products	37%	55%	92%
I want help converting my savings into income in retirement, so I do not outlive my savings	33%	54%	87%
I want help estimating my income needs in retirement, including future health care costs	32%	53%	85%
I trust the retirement planning services my employer offers me	23%	59%	82%
I am confident that the retirement plan my employer offers can help me achieve my retirement goals	24%	56%	80%
I am comfortable deciding how much to invest in each investment option in my employer retirement plan	26%	52%	78%
I have the time that is required to keep an eye on my investments and to make changes as market conditions change	23%	54%	77%
I worry about outliving my savings	31%	43%	75%
It's easy to get enough information about my investment options to make informed decisions	24%	50%	74%
I am confident that I will reach my retirement goals	26%	46%	72%
I have a plan to turn my retirement plan savings into an income stream once I retire	23%	48%	71%

Six in 10 participants said they'd be more likely to stay with their current employer if they offered remote/hybrid work options.

Another six in 10 said they'd be more likely to stay with their current employer if they offered ways to improve their overall financial wellness, a workplace emergency savings plan, help converting savings to income for retirement, and guidance on how to optimize their retirement savings and workplace benefits.

Compared with 2023, these categories increased by 7-14% in their impact on participants' likelihood to stay with their employer in 2025.

Offering retirement income and planning services/products may lead to higher employee retention. Participants said

they'd be more likely to stay with their employers if offered hybrid/ remote work and ways to improve their overall financial wellness.

_

they have on your internitoou to stuy.			
More likely to stay with employer	■ No impact ■ Less	likely to stay with en	ıployer
The ability to work remote or hybrid	65%	31%	4%
Ways to improve my overall financial wellness	63%	35%	2%
A workplace emergency savings plan	62%	35%	3%
Guidance on how to optimize my retirement savings and workplace benefits	60%	38%	2%
Help converting my savings to income for retirement	60%	38%	2%
Access to a professional advisor for help managing my savings and investments	57%	40%	3%
Step-by-step guidance on how to improve my retirement outlook	56%	41%	3%
Education, guidance, tools, and resources to help me reach my retirement goals	54%	42%	4%
Comprehensive caregiver/special needs planning resources and support	45%	50%	5%
Assistance paying off my student loan debt	36%	55%	9%

Exhibit 14: If your employer offered the following services/products, what impact (if any) would they have on your likelihood to stay?

Conclusion

Our participant sentiment survey broadly focused on two components: retirement income and financial wellness (which includes considerations for caregivers).

Retirement income

Retirement readiness is a major challenge for many participants, and they expressed a high level of interest in retirement income solutions. SECURE 2.0 helps sponsors provide their participants with the tools and resources they need to meet this challenge. This legislation, along with its predecessor SECURE Act, provides sponsors more flexibility when it comes to offering retirement income products and services, as well as expanding access to them for participants.

For sponsors, plan design is no longer about simply focusing on helping participants build their savings. Assisting participants with income planning as they enter the decumulation stage is now equally important, especially because many lack confidence in this area. As workers approach retirement, their investment priorities also shift. They become less concerned with growth and more concerned with preservation of capital and generating income.

Many plans tend to fall short when it comes to providing income-generating options to retirees and pre-retirees. In our view, there is no one-size-fits-all solution to helping participants feel retirement ready. Instead, sponsors may want to consider updating plan design, offering new investment options, and building a more robust financial wellness program.

Financial wellness

Financial wellness is a lifelong journey that begins with a single step. A thoughtfully designed financial wellness platform can make it easy for participants to not only see the big picture, but to also act upon it. We believe that **sponsors should consider six distinct areas** when building a financial wellness program for their employees.

- Protection (insurance, estate planning)
- Spending and saving (building a realistic budget)
- Emergency fund (3-6 months' financial cushion)
- Retirement (employer-sponsored plans, HSAs)
- Debt management (paying off debt, avoiding "bad" debt)
- Saving for other goals (college savings, saving for a home)

Survey methodology

Voya Consumer Insights & Research assisted Voya IM with the development, execution, and analysis of the retirement plan participant survey. Data are based on the results of a Voya Financial Consumer Insights & Research survey conducted on January 23 and 24, 2025, among n=500 Americans age 18+ who were full-time employees and actively contributing to their employer-sponsored retirement plan (balanced by age and gender to reflect the U.S. population).

Additional screening criteria included:

- U.S. residents, ages 18+ (n=311 ages 18-49, n=189 ages 50+)
- Mix of employer sizes (companies with fewer than 25 employees excluded)
- Nat. rep. sample: Balanced by age and gender, while controlling for pre-retiree sample

Disclosures

This commentary has been prepared by Voya Investment Management for informational purposes. Nothing contained herein should be construed as (i) an offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to buy any security or (ii) a recommendation as to the advisability of investing in, purchasing or selling any security. Any opinions expressed herein reflect our judgment and are subject to change. Certain of the statements contained herein are statements of future expectations and other forward-looking statements that are based on management's current views and assumptions and involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results, performance or events to differ materially from those expressed or implied in such statements. Actual results, performance or events may differ materially from those in such statements due to, without limitation, (1) general economic conditions, (2) performance of financial markets, (3) interest rate levels, (4) increasing levels of loan defaults, (5) changes in laws and regulations and (6) changes in the policies of governments and/or regulatory authorities.

The opinions, views and information expressed in this commentary regarding holdings are subject to change without notice. The information provided regarding holdings is not a recommendation to buy or sell any security. Portfolio holdings are fluid and are subject to daily change based on market conditions and other factors.

Past performance does not guarantee future results.

©2025 Voya Investments Distributor, LLC • 200 Park Ave, New York, NY 10166 All rights reserved. Products and services offered through the Voya® family of companies. IM4472470 • 221650 • 053025 • 2025-5-4378150



INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT